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Directors’ Report 2024 -25
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 27 Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company along with the audited financial statements for the financial
year ended on 31st March 2025.

1. Financial Results

The financial performance of the Company, for the financial year ended 31st March,
2025 is summarised below:

Rs. In Lakhs
Particul

articulars 2024-25 2023-24
Total Income 183.44 21.13
Earnmgs li)efore interest, (318.15) (26.46)
Depreciation & Tax !
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (376.53) (26.57)
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation (376.53) _ (26.57)
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (376.53) (26.57)

2. Review of Operations

During the period under review, Total Revenue of the Company was Rs. 183.14
Lakhs and Loss for the period was Rs. 376.53 Lakhs.

3. Subsidiaries/ Associates / Joint Venture
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
4. Dividend

In view ol lusse, the Directors have decided not to declare any dividend for the year.
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. Transfer to Reserves
No amount has been transferred to Reserves during the year under review.

. Share Capital
The paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 10.00 Lacs as on 31st
March, 2025. However, Authorised Capital of the Company was Rs. 2.00 Crore 31st
March, 2025.

. Deposits
The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of
provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

. Material Changes and Commitments

During the period under review, there were no material Changes or Commitments
affecting financial position of the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

The Company has neither given any loans/guarantees to any other entities during
the financial year.

. Related Party Transactions

There were no related party transactions entered into by the Company during the
period which attracted the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 as
all related party transactions that were entered into by the Company during the year
were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of the Company's
business. Hence there are no transactions which are required to be disclosed in
Form AOC-2.

Director’s Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,

the Board of Directors of the Company hereby state and confirm that: Y AT
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in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and no material departures have been made there from;

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company for the
financial year ended as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for
the said period;

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adcquate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Company being an unlisted public company, is not required to lay down
internal financial controls to be followed by the Company; and

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual
Return for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 is prepared as per the
provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act, and Rule 12 of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014. The Company is required to host a copy of annual
return on the website, if any of the Company and a web link of the same to be given
in the Directors’ Report. Since, the company doesn’t have any website hence the
Company is not required to host the same.

Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

A.

Board of Directors:

As on 31st March 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company consisted of 3
(three) directors, as per details given in the table below: o
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Sr.No. Name of the Director . Category
1 ~ Mr. Rajendra Sawant _Director
2 Mr Gurnam Singh Non Executive Director (w.e.f. 23/12/2024)
3 . Mr. Neeraj Kant Non Executive Director (w.e.f. 31/12/2024)

Mr. Shashibhushan Upadhyay (DIN:07314313) tendered his resignation from
Directorship of the Company with effect from 31st July, 2024. Mr. Venkatesh
Varadachari (DIN:10190113) tendered his resignation from Directorship of the
Company with effect from 23rd December, 2024. Mr. Shriram Venkat Panse
(DIN:09599556) tendered his resignation from Directorship of the Company
with effect from 31st December, 2024. The Board places on record its deep sense
of appreciation for the immense contribution made by them in the growth of the
Company during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Mr. Rajendra Sawant retire by rotation and being eligible offer himself for
reappointment. The Board recommends his reappointment.

B. Key Managerial Personnel:

During the period under review, provisions related to appointment of the
Key Managerial Personnel were not applicable.

Declaration of Independence

During the period under review, provisions related to appointment of Independent
Directors were not applicable to the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors of the Company met 6 times during the year under review on
May 14, 2024, August 2, 2024, November 7, 2024, December 23, 2024, December 31,
2024 and February 7, 2025. All the Directors attended all the meetings. Further, the
time gap between the two Board Meetings was not more than 120 days.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act), were not appllcable
to the Company. ENGIEY X
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Risk Management Policy

The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent in the business
environment and the operations of the Company and initiation of appropriate
measures for prevention and/or mitigation of the same are dealt with by the
concerned operational heads under the overall supervision of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the
annual/strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews, adequacy of
which has periodically assessed by the Board of Directors.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Adequate systems for internal controls provide assurances on the efficiency of
operations, security of assets, statutory compliance, appropriate authorization,
reporting and recording transactions. The scope of the audit activity is broadly
guided by the annual audit plan approved by the top management and audit
committee. The Internal Auditor prepares regular reports on the review of the
systems and procedures and monitors the actions to be taken.

A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings & Outgo

Information relating to energy conservation and technology absorption and Foreign
exchange, as required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the
financial year ended 315t March, 2025 is as under:

a) Energy Consumption:

The major manufacturing of the company is vendored out to Mukand Ltd. Hence,
there is nothing to report in this clause.

b) Technology Absorption:

Nil.
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B. Particulars of Employees
During the year under review, the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 were not applicable.

20. Presentation of Financial Results

The financial results of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2025 have been disclosed as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,

21. Auditors
A. Cost Auditors:

During the period under review, provisions related to Appointment of Cost
Auditor were not applicable to the Company.

B. Secretarial Auditor:

During the period under review, provisions related to Appointment of Secretarial
Auditor were not applicable to the Company.

C. Statutory Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made there under, the current auditors of the Company, M/s.DHC & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103525W) were appointed
by the shareholders at the 15t Annual General Meeting held on August 5, 2024 to
hold office until the conclusion of the 6th AGM.

The Statutory Auditors in their Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditor.

22. Maintenance of Cost Records:

During the year under review the Company was not required to maintain the Cost
records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies

A NG
(el
0’ o
D]
\ \Z:\

Registered Office: Bajaj Bhavan, 3rd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021, India. Tel.: 912261216666 “Q;:,_i ks
Works: Plot No. 22, MIDC, Lonand, Tal. Khandala, Dist. Satara, Maharashtra PIN — 415521 . Tel.: 9122 21727500
CIN: U28162MH2023PLC415488



MUKAND
GO HeavY
ENGINEERING
LIMITED

BAJAJ

23. Significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts:

During the year, no significant and material orders were passed by any of the
Regulators or Courts.

24. Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year under review, no complaints were received by the Committee
formed under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

25. Confirmation of Compliance of Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards during the year
under review.

26. Acknowledgement:
The Board of Directors thanks the Banks, Central and State Government Authorities,

Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers, Employees and Business Associates for their
continued co-operation and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct;)rs

[hevnoysdo

Mr. Neeraj Kant Mr. Rajendra Sawant
Date: 15th May, 2025 Director Director
Place: Mumbai DIN: 06598469 DIN: 09756916
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mukand Heavy Engineering
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not
include the financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

DHC & Co., Chartered Accountants FRN No. 103525W, (registered on 01st January, 1981)
Registered offices: 42, Free Press House, 215, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021, India. Tel:+91 22 6132 6999 Fax:+91 22 2285 6237
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
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expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of -
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in
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“Annexure 1”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure 2”;

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 28 on Contingent Liabilities to the financial
statements;

(1) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;
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(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
and as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
and as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence,
reporting the compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.103525W

O

Pradhan Dass

Partner
Membership N0.219962
UDIN: 2521996 2BM H X T6; 4492

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 15, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mukand Heavy

Engineering Limited (“the Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2025

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the
information, explanations and written representation given to us by the management and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we
report that:

(i)
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-
progress.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets and accordingly, reporting
under clause (i)(a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been
physically verified by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property and accordingly, reporting
under clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and/or Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties.
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

(b) The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit during the year,
from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current assets.
Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iii)  During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,

reporting under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

C & Co., Chartered Accountants FRN No. 103525W, (registered on 01st January, 1981)
Registered offices: 42, Free Press House, 215, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021, India. Tel:+91 22 6132 6999 Fax:+91 22 2285 6237
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(iv) The provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company
as the company has not granted any loan or made any investment or provided any
guarantee or security during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv) of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(V) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act and rules thereunder is not applicable to the
Company.

(vii)

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to
it, in all cases during the year.

(b) There are no dues with respect to provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty
and cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) We have not come across any transactions which were previously not recorded in the
books of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)
(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture as defined
under the Act and accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) (e) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture as defined
under the Act and accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) (f) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.
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(x) (a)

(b)

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause
(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(c)

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance
by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government by the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date
of this report.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and
upto the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the IND AS financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not
required to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Act. Hence,
reporting under clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not requi red to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3
of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order
are not applicable.

As informed by the Company, the Group to which the Company belongs has 18
(Eighteen) CIC as part of the Group (including the CICs exempt from registration and
CICs not registered).
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has incurred cash losses for the current and the immediately preceding
financial year amounting to Rs. 366.11 Lakhs and Rs. 26.56 Lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the Ind AS financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit report and that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 103523W

Pradhan Dass

Partner
Membership No. 0219962

UDIN: 252 19961-BMm % 3\&%‘{:‘13

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 15, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mukand
Heavy Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

DHC & Co., Chartered Accountants FRN No. 103525W, (registered on 01st January, 1981)
Registered offices: 42, Free Press House, 215, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021, India. Tel:+91 22 6132 6999 Fax:+91 22 2285 6237
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103525W

Pradhan Dass

Partner
Membership No. 219962 :

UDIN: 252199462 g™ H% 3_(’[ "‘1,9%2',

Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 15, 2025



Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
CIN : U28162MH2023PLC415488

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

i As at As at
Particulury Note NO | 41 ot March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 791.87 5.25
(b) Capital Work in progress 11,408.39 -
(c) Intangible Assets under Development 200.47 -
(d) Financial Assets
i) Others 4 2421 0.75
(e) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 5 6.93 C
(f) Other non-current assets 6 851.07 236
Total Non - Current Assets 13,282.94 8.36
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 012 012
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 8 59.95 2494
if) Cash and cash equivalents 9 1111 6.99
iii) Others 4A 50.00 -
(c) Other current assets 10 1,636.18 0.69
Total Current Assets 1,757.36 32.73
Total Assets 15,040.30 41.09
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 10.00 10.00
(b) Other equity 12 (403.10) (26.57)
Total Equity (393.10) (16.57)
LIABILITIES
1 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 13 12,601.92 30.00
ii) Other financial liabilities 14 784.52 -
(b) Provisions 15 1.02 -
Total Non -Current Liabilities 13,387.46 30.00
2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Trade payables due to
Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 16 3.78 =
Other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 57.67 3.86
ii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,905.45 0.10
(b) Other liabilities 18 76.35 23.70
(c) Provisions 19 269 -
Total Current Liabilities 2,045.94 27.66
Total Equity and Liabilities 15,040.30 41.09
Statement of Material Accounting Policies adopted by the Company and 1t0 40
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For DHE & CO.

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FR NO. 103525W

Pradhan Dass

Partner

Membership No: 219962
Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mukan
X

Director

urnam Singh

DIN : 10877089

Mumbai

Date : May 15, 2025

ineering Limited

Rajendra Sawant
Director

DIN : 09756916
Mumbai

Date : May 15, 2025



Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
CIN : U28162MH2023PLC415488

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2025

{Rs. in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2025 2023 to 31st March, 2024
I.  Revenue from operations 20 183.14 21.13
II.  Other income 21 0.30 -
III.  Total Income (I + 1) 183.44 21.13
IV. Expenses:
Cost of Material Consumed 22 129.46 16,27
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade - -
Employee benefits expense 23 58,76 =
Finance costs 24 37.96 0.11
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 10.42 0.01
Other Expenses 26 477,36 31.31
Expenditure Transferrred to Capital Accounts/ Capital work in Progress (Excluding (153.99) -
Finance Cost)
Total expenses (IV) 559.97 47.70
V. Loss for the year before Exceptional Items and tax ( III-TV) (376.53) (26.57)|
VL. Exceptional Items - -
VII. Loss before tax (V- VI) (376.53) (26.57)
VIII. Tax expense:
Current tax = -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) - -
IX. Loss for the period (VII-VIII) (376.53) (26.57)
X.  Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(a)l. Remeasurement of Defined Benefit scheme - -
II. Income tax effect - -
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (X) - -
XL, Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) (376.53) (26.57)
XIL. Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10/- each 27
Basic (376.53) (26.57)
Diluted (376.53) (26.57)
Statement of Material Accounting Policies adopted by the Company and Notes forming part of 11040
the Financial Statements

As per ouy attached report of even date

)
For DHC & CO.

Chartered Accountants
ICAIFR NQ. 103525W

Pradhan Dass

Partner

Membership No: 219962
Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2025

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited

gumam Singh

Diirector

DIN : 10877089

Mumbai

Date ; May 15, 2025

Rajendra Sawant
Director

DIN : 09756916
Mumbai

Date : May 15, 2025



|Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
CIN : U28162MH2023PLC415488

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the period 15th Dec, 2023
Particul
SIS March 31, 2025 to 31st March, 2024

Profit before income tax (376.53) (26.57)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10.42 0.01
Finance Cost 37.96 011
Operating profit before working capital changes (328.15) (26.45)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (35.01) (24.94)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories - (0.12)
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (73.46) (0.75)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current/ non-current assets (1,635.49) (0.69)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 57.59 3.86
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 2,458.24 0.10
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 52.65 23.70
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 37 -
Cash generated from operations 500.08 (25.29)
Income taxes (paid) / refund - net (6.93) -
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 493.16 (25.29)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) (12,067 46) (5.25)
Advances given for Purchase of CWIP (843.71) (2.36)
Fixed Deposit purchased (Margin Money) (5.00) )
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (12,916.16) (7.61)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of Share - 10.00
Proceeds / (repayment) of borrowings (net) 12,571.92 30.00
Interest paid (144.78) (0.11)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 12,427.13 39.89
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,12 6.99
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 6,99 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 9) 11.11 6.99

Note:
1. All figures in bracket are outflow.

2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.

As per our attached report of even date

W

Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited

For DHC & CO. tnam Singh

Chartered Accountants Director

ICAIFR NO. 103525W DIN : 10877089
Mumbai

Pradhan Dass Date : May 15, 2025

Partner

Membership No: 219962

Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

o

Rajendra Sawant
Director

DIN : 09756916
Mumbai

Date : May 15, 2025
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Note 1: Background of the Company

Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
India on December 15, 2023. The Company is predominantly engaged in designing, manufacturing,
erecting and commissioning EOT Cranes, other materials handling and process plant equipment. The
registered office of the Company is located at Bajaj Bhawan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg 226, Nariman Point
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400021.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on May 15, 2025.

Note 2: Material Accounting Policies followed by the Company

(a) Basis of preparation

()

(i)

Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act, on
accrual basis.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the
periods presented in the financial statements.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value or amortised cost:
i) Certain financial assets and liabilities

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR’) which is also the
Company’s functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to nearest
lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i.e. 12 months.

=  Held primarily for purpose of trading

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle i.e. 12 months.

= Itis held primarily for purpose of trading

= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. "

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.




(b) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost includes its purchase price including non cenvatable taxes and duties, directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its present location and condition and initial estimate of costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Machinery spares, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as PPE when they
meet the definition of PPE. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /
under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment has been provided on straight line method based on
the useful life specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act. Depreciation commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation in respect of assets used for long term
engineering contracts is provided on the estimated useful life of the assets. Assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000/ - are fully depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year of purchase.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of lease for land and buildings. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of
the asset.

mpany recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
angements, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low val




leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term. ROU assets are revaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liability measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease Liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which
the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(d) Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(e) Financial instruments
financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
bility or equity instrument of another entity. GINER
N ~Lo0
Ax:‘/’““\ <




(I) Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Company classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* Those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and contractual terms of the cash flows. The Company’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets or both.

Initial Recognition & Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:

*  Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

*  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

*  Debt instruments at amortised cost

*  Equity instruments (either through profit and loss or through other comprehensive
income, if designated)

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other
comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). For investment in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at
FVTOCL

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Business Model Test: The objective is to hold the debt instrument to collect the contractual
cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair
value changes).

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
following criteria are met:




a) Business Model Test: The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and for selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive
income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to statement of profit & loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument which does
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCT is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
Debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVIPL and is not a part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of
profit and loss within other gains or losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Equity Instruments

For all equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on inifial recognition
and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Profit
and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company normally does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial
recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company changes its
business model. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such
reclassifications are given prospective impact as per the principles laid down in Ind AS 109
‘Financial Instruments’.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retaine

interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. ‘/~\ 3
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If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with
its financial assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not
constitute a financing transaction. For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly
increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses
is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the
credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

Equity & Financial Liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(i) Equity Instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(ii) Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at FVTPL
which are initially measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement:

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent measurement into following
categories:

= Atamortised cost

» At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial labilities at amortised cost:

The Company is classifying the following under amortised cost;
®  Borrowings from banks

*  Borrowings from others

=  Finance lease liabilities

= Trade payables

Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVIPL.




* Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement, recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the “other
gains and losses’ line item.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the obligation is discharged,
or is cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(III) Financial guarantees contracts :

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

(IV) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts are taken by the Company to
hedge its foreign currency risks, are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
when they arise (other than in case of hedge accounting).

(V) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(f) Fair value measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, certain investments at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
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* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. The cost formulae used for determination of cost is ‘First in First Out’ for raw
materials and ‘Weighted Average Cost’ for stores and spares. Machinery spares, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as inventory when the useful life is less than
one year and the same are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when issued for
consumption.

Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the Indian tax rates and laws that have
been enacted by the reporting date. The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations
and provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses,
only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a
provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. If the inflow of economic benefits
is probable, then it is disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating
results of its business Segments separately for the purpose of making decision about the resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on the profit or
loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The operating
segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/ services.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:
=  the profit attributable to owners of the Company
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Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account;

= the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

*  the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Revenue Recognition

Engineering construction business:

The revenue recognition of Engineering Contracts under progress requires forecasts to be made of
total budgeted costs with the outcomes of underlying contracts, which further require assessments
and judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and other payments to the extent they
are probable and they are capable of being reliably in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue from Engineering Contracts where the performance obligations are satisfied over time
and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration measured.
However, where the total project cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the
loss is recognized immediately, is recognized as per the percentage of completion method. When
there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed
until such uncertainty is resolved. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets
(which is referred to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities (which is referred to as unearned revenues). The billing schedules agreed with
customers include periodic performance-based payments and / or milestone based progress
payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Engineering Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification
and requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original
contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation or
transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event, transaction price
is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the

following criteria is met:

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs; or

2. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

In case of performance obligations, where any of the above conditions is not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied. -

Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen,
irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract.

s made on account of variation in contract work and extension of time, both, are recognised
enue only when and to the extent of the acceptance of the claim and or variation by th
QN




Unbilled Revenue

Difference between revenue as per percentage of completion method and billing milestone are
considered as unbilled revenue and receivable from such revenue are shown as other financial
assets.

Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial
statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised
and in any future year affected.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

i. Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs
for these valuations are taken from observable sources where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of various inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes in
assumptions,/ judgements about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

. Allowances for uncollected accounts receivable: Trade receivables do are stated at their
normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not collectable.
Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model, which are the present value of the cash
shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. The impairment provisions for financial
assets are based on assumption about the risk of default and expected loss rates. Judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are based on
past history, existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

iii. Impairment of non-financial assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or a group of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

[njassessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
gg g pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of mongy—

the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent marKeb —




transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

iv. Contingencies: Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(p) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures:

1. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts
and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions,
applicable to the Company/ Group w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company/ Group has reviewed
the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have

any significant impact in its financial statements.




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Plant and Office Furniture & Computers Total
Equipment Equipments Fixtures
Gross Carrying Amount
As at1 April 2024 5.25 - - - 5.25
Additions (Refer Note No. 30) 776.12 5.58 3.04 12.31 797.04
Disposals - - N - =
As At 31 March 2025 781.37 5.58 3.04 12.31 802.30
Accumulated depreciation
As at1 April 2024 0.01 - - - 0.01
Depreciation charge during the year 8.87 0.38 0.13 1.04 10.42
Disposals - s
As At 31 March 2025 8.88 0.38 0.13 1.04 10.42
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March, 2025 772.49 5.21 291 11.26 791.87
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Plant and Office Furniture & Computers Total
Equipment Equipments Fixtures
Gross Carrying Amount
Cost as at 15 December 2023 = = = = =
Additions 525 5.25
Disposals 5
As At 31 March 2024 5.25 - - - 5.25
Accumulated depreciation
As at 15 December 2023 - - - - -
Depreciation charge during the period 0.01 - - - 0.01
Disposals - - = - &
As At 31 March 2024 0.01 - - - 0.01
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2024 5.25 - - - 5.25
Note:
3(a) The company does not own any immovable properties.
3(b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March 31, 2025.
3(c) The Company does not hold any Benami Property and does not have any proceedings initiated or pending for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.
3(d) Property, Plant and Equipment are free from any encumbrances.
3( e) Refer Note 28 for Disclosure of contractual commitment for the acqusition of PPE/CWIP.
3(f ) Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP):
(i) Aging of CWIP as on 31 March 2025 (Rs. in Lakhs)
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2 -3 Years More than 3 Years
Projects in Progress 11,408.39 & = = 11,408.39
Projects temporarily suspended - - - = =
Total 11,408.39 - - - 11,408.39

(ii) Aging of Intangible Assets under Development as on 31 March 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2 -3 Years More than 3 Years
Projects in Progress 20047 - - - 200.47
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 200.47 - - - 200.47
There a ue projects or any project whose cost exceeds its original budget.




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 11: Equity Share Capital

(a) Authorised & Issued Share capital:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. Asat As at
Particulars 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Authorised Share Capital
20,00,000 Equity Shares of 2 10 each 200.00 200.00
Total 200.00 200.00
Issued Share Capital
1,00,000 Equity Shares of 2 10 each 10.00 10.00
Total 10.00 10.00
(b) Subscribed and paid capital
o As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
arti
g No. of Shares Amount MNo. of Shares Amount
i) Equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up 1,00,000 10.00 1,00,000 10.00
Total 1,00,000 10.00 1,00,000 10.00
{c) Reconciliation of number of equity shares
paritiig As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
rh
o No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the Year 1,00,000 10.00 - -
Add : Issued during the vear - - 1,00,000 10.00
Balance at the end of the Year 1,00,000 10.00 1,00,000 10.00
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
5 > As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
arti
. No. of Shares | U of holding | No. of Shares | Va of holding
Mukand Limited 99,500 99.90% 99,900 99.90%)

(e} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited (‘the Company’) has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs.
10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

(f) Details of P ters / I? Group Shareholding

As at 31st March, 2025 As al 31st March, 2024
i No. of Shares | % of holding | No. of Shares | % of holding
Mukand Limited 99,900 99.90% 99,900 99.90%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial

ownerships of shares,

(g) There are no bonus shares issued and shares bought back since inception,

{h} There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for date of

shares/ disinvestment.

(i} There are no unpaid calls from any Director and officer.

{j) No Dividend has been declared for the year ended March 31, 2025 by the company.

Note 12: Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
2 Asat As at
Fasticalars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Retained Earnings {403.10) (26.57)
Total (403.10) (26.57)
Note a : Movement in Reserves (Retained Earnings) (Rs, in [,ak,hs}
; As at As at
Patticalars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year (26.57) =
Loss for the year / period {376.53) (26.57)
Balance at the end of the year (403.10) (26.57)

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are the balance (debit/credit) in the statement of Profit and loss.




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 4: Other Non-Current Financial Assets {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Faiticistars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Security Deposits 2421 075
Total 24.21 0.75
Note 4A: Other Current Financial Assets {Rs. in Lakhs)

E As at Asat
Tarticitlazs F1st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Security Deposits (Refer Note No. 30) 50,00 -
Total 50.00 -
Note 5: Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)

L Asat Asat
Particulats 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

TCS Receivable 6.93 -
Total 6,93 *
Naote 6: Other Non-Current Assets (Es. in Lakhs)
Particul Asat Asat

Rl s 315t March, 2025 | 31t March, 2024

Advance to Capex Creditors B40.07 236

Other Bank Balance :

Fixed Deposit (Margin Money- Under lien with Bank) 5.00 -
Total 851.07 2.36
Note 7: Inventories (Rs. in Lakhs)

i As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Raw Material 012 012
Total 012 012
Note & Trade receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul Asat As at

i 31st March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024

Considered good - Secured = -

Considered good - Unsecured 63.10 2494

Which have significant increase in Credit Risk =

Credit Impaired = =

Less: Allowances as per expected credit loss model (3.18) -
Total 59.95 2494

Note a) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further no trade or ather receivable are due
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, or director or member,

Naote b) The Company’s Exposure to credit risk and loss allowances related to trade receivable and disclosed in Note No. 29,

Maote ¢) Receivables are free from any encumberances,

Note d) Trade Receivables Aging schedule: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31 March 2025 Total
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months| 6 months-1|  1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
year years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good unsecured 45.04 1716 - - - 63.10
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in - - - = - -
credit risk
(iti} Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - = =
(iv) Disputed Trade rec bles - ¢ lered good - - - - = =
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit B - - - = o
risk
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - = - =
Total 45.94 17.16 - = 2 63.10
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31 March 2024 Total
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months| 6 months -1|  1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good unsecured 2494 - = - - 24.94
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in - - - - - =
credit risk
(iii) Undisp 1 Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - = -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - ¢ idered pood - - - = = N
{v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit - - = = o =
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credil impaired - - - - z i
Total 24.94 - " - -




Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balance (Rs. in Lakhs)

Asat Asal

Particulars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks in current account 11.11 6.99

Cash on hand - -
Total 1111 6.99
Note 10: Other Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars St At

31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

G5T Receivable 1,636.12 0.69

Interest Receivable 004 3

Prepaid Expenses 0.03 -
Total 1,636.19 0.69
Note 13 Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul As at Asat

S 31st March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024

Unsecured
Inter corporate deposits - Mukand Ltd 12,601.92 30,00
Total 12,601.92 30.00

Note 13 (a) : During the vear, Company has taken unsecured loan (ICD) of INR 12,602 lakhs from Mukand Limited (Holding Company) for the purpose of setting up capital project and to
meet its working capital Loan is repayable up to 31 March 2027 and the rate of interest is 10.50% PA,

Mote 13 (b) : The Company has not defaulted in the payment of interest and installments of the loans as at 31 March 2025,

Note 14: Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current (Bs. in Lakhs})

Asat As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Retention Money Payable 78452 -
Total TB4.52 =
Note 15: Provisions - Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs)

. As at Asat
Particulars

31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Provision for Emplovee Benefits - Gratuity 1.02 -
Total 102 -
Note 16: Trade Payable (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat

31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Trade Pavable

Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 3T -
Other than Micre Enterprises & Small Enterprises 57.67 3.6
Total 61.45 3.86
Note (a): Aging of Trade Payables is as given below: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31 March Total
2 2025
Particylars Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3
years
(i} MSME 3.78 < = - 5 3.78
(i) Others 53.22 446 = = - 57.67
(ii1) Disputed dues — MSME - = - = = =
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = = 5 =
Total 56.99 4.46 - - - 61.45
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31 March Total
2024
Particusar Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
years
(i) MSME E z : = z z
(i) Others 3.86 = - - - 3.86
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - . . Z
Total 3.56 - - - -




a) For Payables Lo related parties, refer Note No, 30,

b) Disclosure in respect of creditors registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDA) is as under:
(Es. in Lakhs)
Asat Asat
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to|

suppliers
a i) Principal not due 378 -
ii} Interest due thereon < =
b} Interest actually paid under section 16 of the MSMEDA -
i) Amount of payment made to suppliers beyond the appointed day x -

¢) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making = -
pavment {which have been paid and beyond the appoeinted day during the
vear) but without adding interest under MSMEDA

d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid o =
e} Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such dates when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible|
expenditure under MSMEDA

The disclosure above is based on the information available with Company regarding the status of the suppliers under the MSME.

Note 17: Other Financial Liabilities - Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
| Particul As at Asat
Articuiss 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Interest Accured on ICD 231.63 010
Creditors for Capital Work in progress 1,668.31 -
Salary Payable 551 o
Total 1,905.45 0.10

Note (a): For payables due to related parties, refer Note No, 30,

Note 18: Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)

. Asat As at
Farticulis J1st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Statutory Dues Payable 7497 221
(Other Liability 1.38 2149
Total 76.35 23.70
Note 19; Provisions - Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Partoulare Asat Asat

st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Provision for Employee Benefits - Variable Pay 269 -

Total 2.69 =




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note: 20 Revenue from Operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2025

For the period 15th Dec,
2023 to 31st March, 2024

Revenue from Product and Services

Engineering Contracts 183.14 19.23
Job works 1.80
Total 183.14 2113
Note: 21 Other income (Rs. in Lakhs)
Paticul For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,
i 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024
Interest on Fixed Deposit Receipt 0.30 -
Total 0.30 =
Note: 22 Cost of Material Consumed (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,
Hams 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024
Opening Stock 0.12
Add: Purchase 129.46 16.39
Add : Direct Expenses
Less : Closing Stock (0.12) (0.12)
Total 129.46 16.27
Note : 23 Employee benefits expense (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,
LeHats 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024
Salaries and wages 53.86 -
Contributions to provident and other funds 4.61 =
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.29 =
Total 58.76 -
Note: 24 Finance Costs (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended | For the period 15th Dec,

Particulars

31st March, 2025

2023 to 31st March, 2024

Interest Expenses (Refer Note No. 30) 376.41 0.11
Less: Interest Capitalized (338.44) -
Total 37.96 011




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note: 25 Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,

teulans 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No. 3) 1042 0.01
Total 10.42 0.01
Note: 26 Other expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the Year Ended For the period 15th Dec,

— 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024
Stores, Spares, Components, Tools, etc consumed 436 -
Power and Fuel consumed 58.14 -
Sub-Contracting Expenses 35.05 1.71
Job Work Charges - 1.50
Water Charges 244 -
Freight Charges 1.04 0.34
Bank Charges 032 -
Commercial Rent 300.00 13.71
Repairs & Maintenance 0.20 -
Services Charges-MIDC 7.97 -
Rate & Taxes 0.27 327
Insurance 16.13 -
Legal and Professional Fees (Refer Note 26A) 14.07 279
Security Service Charges 17.61 =
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3.16 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 16.81 8.00
Total 477.36 31.31
Note 26A : Audit Remuneration (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the Year Ended | For the period 15th Dec,

aricwiars 31st March, 2025 | 2023 to 31st March, 2024

For Statutory Audit fees 3.00 1.00
For Taxation Matter - Tax Audit - -
For Other Services 1.50 =
Out of Pocket Expenses - -
Total 4.50




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 27: Earnings per Share (EPS)

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Net Profit After Taxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs. In Lakhs) (376.53) (26.57)
Net Profit for calculation of basic / diluted EPS [including Exceptional Items (net)] (Rs. In Lakhs) (376.53) (26.57)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 1,00,000 1,00,000

Basic and diluted EPS (face value Rs.10/- per share) (in Rs.)

(376.53)




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 28: Contingent Liabilities and commitments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul For the Year Ended | For the period 15th
ATRERLMS 31st March, 2025 Dec, 2023 to 31st
i. Contingent liabilities
a. Guarantees = .
ii. Capital Commitments (net of advances) 6,017.60 -

Total

6,017.60




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 29: Financial Risk Management

The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent in the business environment and the operations of the Company and initiation
of appropriate measures for prevention and/or mitigation of the same are dealt with by the concerned operational heads under the overall
supervision of the Directors of the Company. The Directors periodically reviews the adequacy and efficacy of the overall risk management system,
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company has in place adequate
Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls are operating effectively. The Company has
adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of
reliable financial statements.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

e Credit risk

* Liquidity risk and

* Market risk

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk
EXPDS'IJI'9<

i. Trade and Other receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the
simplified approach using a provision matrix. The loss rates are computed using a 'roll rate' method based on the probability of receivable
progressing through successive stages till full provision for the trade receivable is made.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (gross) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due -

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Not due 45.94 2494
0 to 180 days past due date 17.16 -
More than 180 days past due date = =
63.10 24,94

The following table summarizes the changes in loss allowances measured using life time expected credit loss model -

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening Provision - -
Provision during the year 3.16 -

Reversal of provision - -
Closing provision 3.16 -

ii. Cash and bank balances

The Company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of 2 11.11 Lakhs at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 2 6.99 Lakhs). The same are
generaly held with Nationalised scheduled bank. Also, Company invests its short term surplus funds in Nationalised schedule bank fixed deposit
which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the Company to credit risk.

iii. Others
Other than trade financial assets reported above, the Company has no other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Management manages liquidity risk by monitoring rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows.




Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than
31 March 2025: 1 year or less 1-2 years 2 years Total
Long term borrowings - 12,601.92 - 12,601.92
Short term borrowings - - - -
Trade payables 61.45 - - 61.45
Other financial liabilities 1,905.45 784.52 - 2,689.97
Total 1,966.90 13,386.44 - 15,353.34

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than T
31 March 2024: 1 year or less 1-2 years 2 years otal
Long term borrowings - 30.00 - 30.00
Short term borrowings " - - =
Trade payables 3.86 = - 3.86
Other financial liabilities 0.10 - - 0.10
Total 3.96 30.00 - 33.96
(C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that arises from changes in market prices, such as interest rates (interest rate risk). They will affect the Company’s income. The

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligation at floating
interest rates, The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Variable rate borrowings - -
Fixed rate borrowings 12,601.92 30.00
Total borrowings 12,601.92 30.00
Sensitivity:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates (in case of variable rate loan) would have following impact on profit after tax and equity -
(Rs. in Lakhs)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points * - -

Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points * - -

* Holding all other variables constant




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited

Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 30: Related Party Disclosures

a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Status Name of the related party
i) KMP and their Relationship Director Mr. Neeraj Kant
Director Mr. Gurnam Singh
Director Mr. Rajendra Sawant
ii) Holding Company Indian Company Mukand Limited
iii) Fellow Subsidary Indian Company Mukand Sumi Metal Processing Limited

iv) Other Related Party

Indian Company Mukand Sumi Special Steels Limited

b) Details of Related Party Transactions: (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended | For the period 15th
Name of the related party Nature of Transaction 31st March, 2025 Dec, 2023 to 31st
March, 2024
Other Payments/Expenditure
2 2,346. -
Miikaiid Liinied Purchase of PPE / CWIP . ,346.00
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits 37641 011
Loan/ Inter Company Deposit 12,571.92 30.00
Leasehol 300.00 13.71
Mukand Sumi Special Steel Ltd sshold Rint i
Security Deposit 50.00 -
¢) Details of balances outstanding for Related Party Transactions (Rs. in Lakhs)
5 : As at As at
Particulars Nature of Transaction 31t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Amount payable in respect of Borrowings 12,601.92 30.00
Mukand Limited Amount payable in respect of Interest Accured on ICD (Net of TDS) 231.63 0.10
Amount payable in respect of Capital Goods 772.67 =
Mikand Surns Special Steel L1 Amount recewabl‘e in Security Deplosu T received 50.00
Amount payable in respect of Services received 27.00 12.34

d) Name of the related party and the related party relationship where control exists have been disclosed only when there have been transactions with those
parties. Related parties as defined under para 9 of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" have been identified by the Company based on the representations

made by Key managerial personnel and information available with the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

e) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’'s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 31: There are no financial instruments which are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and
other similar agreements but not offset, as at the reporting date.

Note 32: Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and maximize shareholder value.

Lhe Company manages 1ts capital structure and makes adjustments in light ot changes m economic conditions,
annual operating plans, long term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. No

changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,
2025.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt
is defined as interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents & Current Investments.
Equity comprises all components of equity including share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity share holders.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Borrowings:
Long term and Short term borrowings 12,601.92 30.00
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents (11.11) (6.99)
Less : Current Investments - -
Adjusted net debt 12,590.81 23.01
Total Equity (393.10) (16.57)
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (32.03) (1.39)




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 33: Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company also contributes on a defined contribution basis to employees' provident fund and superannuation fund.
Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund (an exempted Trust). The obligation of the Company is limited to the
amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plans:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2025

For the period 15th Dec,
2023 to 31st March, 2024

Employer’s Contribution to PF

Employer’s Contribution to FPF

Employer’s Contribution to EDLI

Employer’s Contribution to ESIC

Employer’s Contribution to Superannuation Fund

1.45
0.49
0.03

1.63

Defined benefit plans

Compensated Leave

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave and sick leave.
The compensated absences charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 is Rs. NIL (previous

year Rs. NIL).

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per Company's Scheme/s. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is based on the employees
last drawn basic salary, special allowance and dearness allowance per month and as per the Schemes applicable to those

employees from time to time.

Note 34: Reconciliation of liabilities arising from Financing Activities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening Balance Cash Movement Total
31 March 2025
Inter Corporate Deposits 30.00 12,571.92 12,601.92
Total 30.00 12,571.92 12,601.92
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Opening Balance Cash Movement Total
31 March 2024
Inter Corporate Deposits - 30.00 30.00
Total - 30.00 30.00

These cash movements are included in the cash flow statement: receipts from borrowing, repayment of borrowing.




Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
MNotes forming Part of Financial Statements

Naote 35: Fair Value Measurements

A, Accounting classification and fair values
The fallowing table shows the carrying amounts and faie values of financial assets and linancial labilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. [t does

not include fair value information for inancial assets and financial liabilities nol measured at {aie value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximalicn of fair
value.

i khs)
i v
Financial Assets and Liabilities Gt ylag valde FurVaig
as at 318t March, 2025 et
: . FVIPL | pvrocy | Ameritised Total Levell | Levelz | Levels | Total
Financial Assets-Non C
Others : - 1.2 M2
Financial ets-Current -
Trade receivable - - 59,95 5945 - - - -
Cash and Cash quivalents - - 1111 1111 - - - -
Mhers -] -] S0.00] S511.00| B z = al
Total E B 145.27] 145.27] - E B 0
|Financial Lishilities-Non Current =
Borrowin, - - 1260192 12,601,592
& lion Money = - 78152 784,52
|Financial Liabilities-Current
Trade Payables X f 6145 6143 B A - 2
Other Financial Liabilities -] - 1,905.45 1,905,45 - -] - Fi
Tolal - | 15,353.34 15,353.34 4 - - B
(Rs. in Lakhs
Carrying value Fair Value
|Financial Assets and Liabilities
as at 315t March, 2024 FVTPL | FVTOCI ‘*"‘;‘::“‘* Total Levell | Level? | Leveld | Total
Financial Assets-Non Current
Others - s 0.75 0.75] = 3
Financial Assete-Current :
Trade ruceivable 2 p 2484 4 B = = -
lonts 2 B [ | : : 2 7
Total -| - 32.67 3267 ] ] f 5
Financial Liabilities-Non Current -
o - = 30,00 L0
Other Financial Linbilities - Relention Mon - 3
i lities-Current
) 3,56 386 - - | -
Financial Linbilitics E g 010 011 - 5 ] =
Total - - 33.96 33,96 E -] - E

B. Measurement of fair value

The fair values of the linancial assels and liabilities are included ol the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged oo currenl transaction between
parties, other than i a lorced or lguidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash and short-teem deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, olher current habilities, shorl term loans oo banks and otber
finincial instilutions approsimate e carrying amounts largely due to short teom mstarities of these instruments.

2. Fimancial instruments with fixed and variable inferest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit

of the o party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken toaccount for expected Tosses of hese receivables,

3. The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrawings and loans wre determined by using Discounted cash {low method using discount rate that reflects
the boreowing rale as al the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2025 was assessed 1o be insignificant.

. Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred o above have been classilied into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The
Tuerarchy gives the highest priority to quoled prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level T measurements) and lowesl priority lo unobservable
inpuls (Level 3 measurements).

Level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, The fair value of equity instroments. which ane traded in the stock exchanges
is valwed using the closing price as al the reporting penod.

Level 2: The lair value of linancial instruments that are nol traded in an active market is determined wsing valuation technigques which maximise the use of
observable purket dats and rely as little as possible on enlity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required 1o fair value an instroment ane observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 If ane or more of the significant inputs is not hased on observable market data, the instrument s included in Jevel 3, Level 3 is the case for unlisted equity
securities andfor shares which are thinly traded.
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Mukand Heavy Engineering Limited
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements

Note 37 : Additional Disclosures

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

iiy  The Company does not have any subsidiary and hence the provisions of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restricion on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to the Company.

iii)  The company was newly established in FY 2023-24, accordingly the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.,

iv)  During the financial year 2024-15, the company did not engage in any transactions with companies that have been struck off under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

v) No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013),
either severally or jointly with any other person.

vi)  No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any party (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii)  The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

MNote 38 - Segment Reporting

The company has identified its operating segments based on the nature of its products and other quantitative criteria in accordance with Ind AS 108,
Based on the evaluation, the company has concluded that it has only one reportable business segment, no further segment reporting is required.

During the year ended 31-03-2025 at company level made sale to 3 (three) customers in Job work sale of Rs 183.14 Lakhs (PY Rs. 21.13 Lakhs) resulting in
more than 10% of the total company revenue.

Note 39 - Slump Sale

On May 15, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the draft Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) between MHEL and Mukand Limited
for acquiring a part of Mukand's Industrial Machinery Business consisting of EOT Cranes, other material handling and process plant equipment as a
going concern via slump sale to be settled through issue of equity shares, subject to necessary adjustments and terms of the BTA.

Note 40 - Previous year's figures has been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary.
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